
The 
central 
Post 
Office 

exico City's main Post 
Office is the Palacio 
Postal, a veritable 
architectural jewel 

which stands opposite the Palace of 
Fine Arts and covers an area of 4,476 
square yards. 

Designed by the Italian architect 
Adamo Boari and the military 
engineer Gonzalo Garita, the Post 
Office was built in accordance with its 
purpose and the space available. It was 
inaugurated in 1907 by President 
Porfirio Díaz. 

Opinions on the buildings's 
architectural style vary. However, 
most would agree that it bears the 
influence of the Spanish plateresque 
style, combined with a certain 
eclecticism reflected in the 
predominance of Gothic elements 
such as cresting and zoomorphic 
gargoyles on the roof, merlons, 
fleurons and pinnacles crowning the 
turrets, and the false ogee arches over 
the raised arches of the windows of 
the first and second storeys. 

The fact that the Post Office is 
frequently associated with the Palacio 
de Monterrey in Salamanca on the one 
hand and the Doge's Palace in Venice, 
on the other, reinforces this building's 
characterization as eclectic. 

From 1956 to the present, the 
third and fourth floors of the building 
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have been leased to the Banco de 
México. The Mexican Postal Service 
has its offices for attending the public 
on the ground floor. Post-office 
boxes are located in the mezzanine, 
while the second storey holds a 
library, hall and museum. 

The Post Office's four facades are 
astonishingly similar, both as 
regards the materials employed in 
their construction and the 
combination of ornamental elements 
used in their design. 
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The building's main facade looks 
out onto Tacuba Street. An arch was 
built over its only entrance, aboye 
which the large windows of the 
second and third storeys can be seen. 

The west facade, facing the 
Palace of Fine Arts, has four 
entrances, two of which are occupied 
by the outside mail boxes. 

The presence of eight shells or 
scallop-shaped moldings under the 
second-storey windows, and one on 
either side of the national coat-of-
arms, distinguishes this side from the 
other three. The shells are in the 



opposite position to the allegorical, 
religious ones so common in the 
plateresque period. 

On the east facade, facing the 
Palacio de Minería and La Condesa 
Lane, there are two Gothic-style pillars 

on either side of the entrance to the 
service courtyard. In the middle there 
are two fanciful depictions of griffins 
standing guard, in the medieval style. 

The south face, located in an area 
that makes it almost impossible to 
see, is the most modest of all. It has 
two projecting turrets, whose 
windows are decorated in a similar 

manner to those of the north-east 
section. The top still contains the 
parapet of the unbroken balcony. 

The pan-coupé has a very Mudéjar-
style entrance door, with its distinctive 
panel, featuring two large oxen at either 
end, under empty coats-of-arms. At the 
top stands a splendid national coat-of-
arms. The animal and plant images in 
the arch aboye the entrance han out to 
be the most interesting feature, since 
they suggest a strange sort of allegory 
associated with the postal service. 

Knotted serpents, rabbits, dogs, 
cactus and acanthus leaves are some 
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of the features making up this 
iconography. There is an unusual 
predilection for coats-of-arms, 205 of 
which are scattered over the building's 
four faces and pan-coupé. This 
predilection has been attributed to the 
architect, Adamo Boari. 

The inside of the building is 
remarkably functional, even for today. 
The ground floor is devoted to service 
to the public. Spacious corridors lead 
users across marble floors to the 
appropriate counter. Aboye the 
Mexican marble counters, the iron and 

bronze grilles produced by the Pignone 
Foundry are worthy of note. In 1973, 
this fine bronze work was covered in 
black oil paint, and the details of its 
adornments and moldings painted in 
bronze dust, as a result of which its 
original beauty and sheen were lost. 

The splendid double staircase 
enables one to enjoy, from any height, 
the beauty of the first patio, whose 
design was influenced by the Spanish 
plateresque style. 

Although rarely visited, since it is 
the service courtyard, the second patio 
is the only example of a structure 
containing a dado. The intrados in the 
glass soffit shows a strong late English 
Gothic influence. 

On the second floor, the hall boasts 
a beautiful soffit of projecting panels 
decorated with acanthus foliation, 
against a background of tiny apples. 
The tempera paintings, completed by 
Bartolomé de Galloti in 1905, are the 
hall's most interesting feature. 

The treasures of the Post Office 
In addition to the paintings by Galloti, the 
Post Office houses other treasures, such 
as a large collection of objects related to 
the history of the postal service in 
Mexico, the country's entire stamp 
collection, as well as bibliographical 
documents and documentary archives of 
the post office's history. 

The Post Office Museum, located 
on the second storey, includes a 
perambulating wheel, odometers, a 
selection of mail boxes, franking 
machines, sticks of sealing wax, pens 
and inkwells. 

The Post Office library contains 
nearly seven thousand five hundred 
volumes covering most aspects of the 
postal service and a collection of 
official newspapers from the 19th 
century onwards. It also has 
approximately eight hundred 
documents on aspects related to the 
Post Office and Mexican history 

Staff Writer. 
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